
 

 

 

 

INCOME GENERATION SUB-

COMMITTEE 

 

AGENDA 

 

 Date: Wednesday, 27th July, 2022 

 Time: 7.00 pm 

 Venue: 
 

Guildhall 

 
 



2 

INCOME GENERATION SUB-COMMITTEE  
 

Information for Members of the Public 
 
Access to the Guildhall is via the front entrance in the High Street.  The nearest car park is 

Copenhagen Street (pay and display). If you are a wheelchair user or have restricted mobility, access 

to the Guildhall can be gained either through the door on the right side of the forecourt as you face the 

Guildhall, or through the sliding doors at the rear of the Guildhall. There is dedicated disabled parking 

space at the rear (access via Copenhagen Street). Most meetings are held on the ground floor, which 

can be reached by using a lift.  If you are a wheelchair user or have restricted mobility and you wish to 

attend a meeting, please telephone or email the officer mentioned below in advance and we will make 

any necessary arrangements to assist your visit. 

 

Part I of the Agenda includes items for discussion in public.  You have the right to inspect copies of 

Minutes and reports on this part of the Agenda as well as background documents used in the 

preparation of these reports. Details of the background papers appear at the foot of each report. Part II 

of the Agenda (if applicable) deals with items of 'Exempt Information' for which it is anticipated that 

the public may be excluded from the meeting and neither reports nor background papers are open to 

public inspection. 

 

Please note that this is a public meeting and members of the public and press are permitted to report 

on the proceedings. "Reporting" includes filming, photographing, making an audio recording and 

providing commentary on proceedings. Any communicative method can be used to report on the 

proceedings, including the internet, to publish, post or share the proceedings. Accordingly, the 

attendance of members of the public at this meeting may be recorded and broadcast. By choosing to 

attend this public meeting you are deemed to have given your consent to being filmed or recorded and 

for any footage to be broadcast or published.   

 

Please note the Council records and live streams many of its meetings. These recordings are published 

on the relevant meeting pages of the Council’s website. A notice to this effect will be posted in the 

meeting room. If a member of the public chooses to speak at a meeting of the City Council he/she will 

be deemed to have given their consent to being recorded and audio being published live to the 

Council’s website. The Chair of the meeting, can at their discretion, terminate or suspend recording, if 

in their opinion, continuing to do so would prejudice the proceedings of the meeting or if they consider 

that continued recording might infringe the rights of any individual, or breach any statutory provision. 

 

At the start of the meeting under the item 'Public Participation' up to fifteen minutes in total is allowed 

for members of the public to present a petition, ask a question or comment on any matter on the 

Agenda.  Participants need to indicate that they wish to speak by 4.30 p.m. on the last working day 

before the meeting by writing, telephoning or E-Mailing the officer mentioned below. 

 

If you have any general enquires or queries about this Agenda or require any details of background 

papers, further documents or information, or to discuss arrangements for the taking of photographs, 

film, video or sound recording please contact the Lead Officer, Julian Pugh, Democratic Services 

Administrator, Guildhall, Worcester WR1 2EY.  Telephone: 01905 722027 (direct line); E-Mail Address:  

committeeadministration@worcester.gov.uk. 

 

This agenda can be made available in large print, braille, on PC disk, tape or in a number of ethnic 

minority languages.  Please contact the above named officer for further information. 

 

Agendas and minutes relating to all City Council Committees and Council Meetings are also available 

electronically, click on the option “Committee Minutes and Documents”, Website Address: 

worcester.gov.uk 

 

 



3 

Income Generation Sub-Committee 
Wednesday, 27 July 2022 

 

Members of the Committee:- 

 

Chair: Councillor Jabbar Riaz (L) 
Vice-Chair: Councillor Steve Mackay (C) 

 
Councillor Jill Desayrah (L) 

Councillor Chris Mitchell (C) 
 

Councillor Louis Stephen (G) 

 

 

  

C= Conservative G = Green L = Labour LCo = Labour and Co-operative  
LD = Liberal Democrat 

 

AGENDA 
 

Part 1 
(ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND DECISION IN PUBLIC) 

 

1. Appointment of Substitutes  

 To receive details of any Members appointed to attend the meeting instead of a 
Member of the Sub-Committee. 

 

2. Declarations of Interest  

 To receive any declarations of interest. 

 

3. Public Participation  

 Up to a total of fifteen minutes can be allowed, each speaker being allocated a 

maximum of five minutes, for members of the public to present a petition, ask a 
question or comment on any matter on the Agenda or within the remit of the Sub-
Committee. 

 

4. Minutes  

Page(s): 1 - 4 

 Of the meeting held on 15th June 2022 to be approved and signed. 
 

5. Income Generation and Income Management  

Page(s): 5 - 10 

Ward(s): All Wards 

Contact Officer:  Shane Flynn, Corporate Director, Finance and Resources 

Tel: 01905 722536 

 That the Sub-Committee recommend to Council revised Responsibilities for 

Functions and revise its title to Income Management Committee. 
 

6. Quarter 1 Performance Report For 2022/23  

Page(s): 11 - 22 

Ward(s): All Wards 



4 

Contact Officer:  Joanna Payne, Corporate Policy and Strategy Officer 
Tel: 01905 722407 

 That the Income Generation Sub-Committee notes the Council’s quarter 1 
performance for 2022/23. 

 

7. Electrical Vehicle Charging Prices  

Ward(s): All Wards 

Contact Officer:  Kevin Moore, Head of Property and Asset Management 

Tel: 01905 722251 

 That the Sub-Committee recommends the charges within this report to Council for 
approval. 

 
(Report to follow) 

 

8. Any Other Business  

 Which in the opinion of the Chair is of sufficient urgency as to warrant 
consideration. 

 



INCOME GENERATION SUB-COMMITTEE 

 
15th June 2022 

 
Present:  
 

Councillor Jabbar Riaz in the Chair 

 Councillors Desayrah, Mackay (Vice-Chair)  
and Mitchell 

 

Officers: Mark Baldwin, Head of Finance 
Shane Flynn, Corporate Director – Finance  

and Resources 
Douglas Henderson, Business 

Development Manager (Bereavement 
Services) 

 

Apologies:  
 

Councillor Stephen 

 
1 Appointment of Substitutes  

 

None. 
 

2 Declarations of Interest  
 
None. 

 
3 Public Participation  

 
None. 
 

4 Minutes  
 

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 9th March 2022 be 
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 

5 Bereavement Services  
 

The Committee received a report from the Business Development Manager 
(Bereavement Services) which summarised actions taken to develop the service 

since his appointment in February 2020. There was an opportunity for Sub-
Committee Members to ask questions and comment on the presentation.  
 

Sub-Committee Members welcomed the report and acknowledged the progress 
made, including working with various volunteer groups on specific tasks, the full 

review of fees and charges in 2020/21, keeping the key charges competitive with 
other local crematoria, developing and improving relationships with funeral 
directors and improving the public experience and also the environmental impact. 

 
RESOLVED: That the Sub-Committee note the progress made by 

Bereavement Services in enhancing the service provided to customers. 
 
 

 
 

Page 1 Agenda Item 4



 15th June 2022 2 

 
 

6 Local Authority Housing Development Company  

 
The Sub-Committee considered a report on the possibility of establishing a 

Housing Development Company. The Corporate Director – Homes and 
Communities presented the report and summarised the findings of a report 
produced by ARK, a housing specialist organisation.  

 
Their advice at this stage was that the Council should not progress with 

developing a special purpose vehicle for direct housing production, or entering a 
long-term joint venture with a private developer or registered provider. The main 
reasons for this finding related to the limited scope for development within 

Worcester due to space constraint and the lack of land within the Council’s 
ownership that could be offered as a contribution to offset the Council’s costs in 

setting up either venture.  
 
Furthermore, both options would likely require the Council to recruit additional 

and specialist resources at a time when the medium-term financial plan sets out 
the requirement to make significant annual savings. 

 
Sub-Committee Members discussed the findings and in conclusion accepted the 
advice from ARK not to proceed to set up a Housing Development Company at 

this stage, however the Council should continue to consider an appropriate vehicle 
as part of the development of a Housing Enabling Strategy. 

 
RESOLVED: That the Sub-Committee note the report of ARK consultancy 

on options for Council-Led Housing Development and the potential for a 
Housing Development Company as an appropriate vehicle for progressing 
these options. 

 
7 Annual And Quarter 4 Performance Report For 2021/22  

 
The Committee considered the annual and quarter 4 performance report. The 
Corporate Director – Finance and Resources presented the report and commented 

on the progress with regard to each of the Income Generation projects. The Head 
of Finance commented on the Key Performance Indicators - End of Year 2021/22 

 
Officers responded to questions from Members on detailed aspects of the report. 
 

The Corporate Director advised that a revised Commercial Strategy will be 
presented to the Committee in the Autumn. 

 
There was a discussion about the future focus of this Sub-Committee. Members 
concluded that this should include the strategic direction for income generation, 

income management and identifying opportunities for maximising revenue. 
 

RESOLVED: That the Sub-Committee note the Council’s annual and 
quarter 4 performance for 2021/22. 
 

8 Any Other Business  
 

The Chair agreed to consider this matter as an item of additional business. 
 

Page 2



 15th June 2022 3 

 
 

Councillor Mackay proposed that the Sub-Committee should consider the 

possibility of the Council developing its own car parking app as an alternative to 
Ringo. Other Sub-Committee Members agreed that there was merit in looking at 

this and requested Officers to present a report at a future meeting. 
 

9 Items Involving the Disclosure of Exempt Information  

 
RESOLVED: That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 

1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the 
following items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely 
disclosure of information as defined in Schedule 12A of the said Act. 

 
10 Minutes (Exempt Items)  

 
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 9th March 2022 be 
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 

 
 

 
Duration of the meeting: 7.00p.m. – 8.11p.m. 
 

 
 

 
Chair at the meeting on 

27th July 2022 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



 
 

Report to: Income Generation Sub-Committee, 27th July 2022 
 

Report of: Corporate Director - Finance and Resources 
 

 
Subject: INCOME GENERATION AND INCOME MANAGEMENT 

 
1. Recommendation 
 

1.1 That the Sub-Committee recommend to Council revised Responsibilities for 
Functions and revise its title to Income Management Committee. 

 
2. Background      

2.1 Like all other Local Authorities in the UK, Worcester City Council’s finances have 
been in transition from a funding model based primarily on grants from central 
government to one based on locally-generated income. The withdrawal of central 

funding has significantly outstripped growth in other income over the last few years. 
Between 2010/11 and 2014/15 Central Government funding fell from £8.193m to 

£4.998m. The Revenue Support Grant element of this continued to decline, from 
£1.856m in 2015/16 to zero by 2019/20. 

2.2 More recently, the Government’s funding strategy has shifted back towards a grant-

based approach. This includes grants of major capital funding (with an element of 
revenue) which is based on competitive bids from councils and the creation of new 

one-off revenue streams which are designed to maintain ‘core spending power’. Core 
spending power is the amount of funds that the Government deems each Council 
needs to provide services. This includes Business Rates baseline income, Council Tax 

income and New Homes Bonus. 

2.3 The new revenue grants are ‘Lower Tier Services Grant’ which was paid in 2021/22 

and 2022/23 (£0.1m) and a general ‘Service Grant’ which was for 2022/23 only 
(£0.2m). In terms of capital grants, the Council has been successful in obtaining 
3.5m for the Cultural Development Fund, £17.9m for the Future High Street Fund 

and £19.6m Towns Fund. As a result, £190,000 p.a. of existing salary costs are 
being capitalised and charged through to these grants. A further £20m is potentially 

available for Levelling Up, and the Council has been allocated £2.7m over three 
years for UK Shared Prosperity Fund (SPF) from 2022/23. The latter is a revenue 
grant, against which some existing salaries can be charged.  

2.4 Despite these increased sources of income direct from Government, the Council 
remains dependent upon income from local sources. The Council has recognised this 

for a number of years and published a set of proposals for stabilising, maintaining 
and increasing income in the budget papers for 2017/18: 

“The proposed approach to generating additional income will be on a project basis 

with three key areas of activity: 

 

Page 5 Agenda Item 5



i. Updating our income budgets to ensure they reflect the current levels of activity 
and the actual income generated.  

ii. Increasing income on our existing income activities through a review of 
compliance, enforcement and a targeted business case approach to review the 
potential for income growth. The business case approach will also be applied to 

smaller scale new income opportunities, associated with or complementary to our 
existing activities.  

iii. In the medium term, the development of two-three ‘big ticket’ income items that 
generate more significant levels of income through, for example: better utilisation of 
our asset base either as a stand alone or through partnership working; the 

development of sites for housing, business opportunities or leisure activities to 
encourage economic growth and a healthy and more active population; and the 

further development of the tourism offer through our heritage assets and partnership 
approach.” 

2.5 A Commercial Strategy, approved by Council in February 2018 and revised in 2021, 
sets out the means by which this will be achieved and aligns income generation 
activities with the City Plan and the Council’s wider strategic objectives. The Income 

Generation Strategy, also revised in 2021, complements the Commercial Strategy. It 
identifies proposed sources of income, defines the approach to setting targets for 

income recovery levels and proposes specific tasks to achieve those targets. 
 

3. Changes in Income-generating Opportunities 

 
3.1 A major component in the strategies was the generation of income through the 

acquisition of properties. This was allowable under the Prudential Code as long as 
there was a broader intention to further the Council’s aims in respect of local 
wellbeing. However, in November 2020, HM Treasury introduced a change to the 

guidance around capital investment to state that local authorities could not access 
Public Works Loans Board (PWLB) loans in any year where their capital programmes 

included spending on assets which were primarily for the purposes of income 
generation. These regulations apply to all capital spending, whether it is within the 
local authority’s borders or outside and whether it is financed through PWLB 

borrowing or another source.  
 

3.2 In May 2022 the guidance was revised to state that PWLB would be withheld where 
there was a significant risk that loans could not be repaid. This puts further emphasis 
on the question of future financing, as any loans taken out in recent years to acquire 

income-generating assets cannot be re-financed by new PWLB loans once the current 
loans mature. 

 
3.3 The Council has been consistent in its approach in that assets have only been 

acquired within the city as this investment brings a local economic benefit. However, 

the tighter definitions means that such acquisitions can now only take place where 
there is a specific development requirement, or market failure, that can be 

demonstrated. This Guidance refers to cases where access to PWLB loans will be 
acceptable, including the following purposes:  
 

 Service delivery - expenditure on assets that form part of the authority’s public 
service delivery. 
 

Page 6



 Housing  - which is given separately from ‘service delivery’ because of the 
relative concentration of cross-subsidy and other innovative financing 

arrangements in housing projects 
 

 Regeneration – which involves direct investments in assets to generate 

additional social or economic benefits 
 

 Preventative action - which involves direct financial support to local companies 
or acquiring assets as a way to protect jobs, prevent social or economic decline 

 

 Treasury management, which includes the refinancing or extending of existing 
debt from any source, the externalisation of internal borrowing or borrowing to 

manage cashflow within year. 
 

3.4 To ensure that it is able to continue to access PWLB capital, therefore, the Council 
will need to demonstrate that its activities are specifically directed towards the above 
and are not primarily for the purposes of income generation. 

 
3.5 There may still be an income generating element of capital activities. For example, in 

July 2021 the Council purchased 54-56 Foregate Street. This purchase includes 
properties to let which generate annual income of approximately £75,000, of which 
50% returns to the Council. However, the purpose of the acquisition was to be able 

to demolish one of the group of assets to enable the Arches Worcester project to be 
completed in full. The income is needed to cover the acquisition costs. 

 
3.6 Similarly, the acquisition of 8 Angel Place as part of the Future High Street Fund has 

the potential to generate long term income once it has been developed as part of the 
rejuvenation of the Scala Theatre and Corn Exchange and Angel Place. Likewise, The 
Committee recently re-considered the purchase of Shrub Hill Retail Park to support 

the wider Shrub Hill development within the Town Improvement Plan objectives. 
 

3.7 To meet the terms of the Guidance a clear distinction must be made between 
activities which have an element of income recovery as part of the development and 
those which are designed primarily to generate income. The Terms of Reference of 

the Income Generation Sub-Committee as provided in the Constitution, state that 
the Committee is a Sub-Committee of the Policy & Resources Committee and that its 

delegated functions are as set out in the following table: 
 
Committee Functions Delegation of 

Functions 

Income 

Generation 

Sub-

Committee 

To determine all matters falling within the remit of 

the Committee which are within the Council’s Policy 

Framework and Budget other than those reserved by 

this Constitution to the Council 

Delegation to officers set 

out at Part 18. 

 The following functions: 

 Oversight of asset reviews (i.e. One Town 

Review) 

 Development of income generation proposals 

 Feasibility work for income generation  

 Approval and oversight of projects under the 

Small Development Fund 

 Reviewing Fees and Charges 

Delegation to officers set 

out at Part 18. 

Page 7



  An externally focussed scrutiny function on 

matters relevant to the functions of the 

committee, provided that the areas of scrutiny 

shall be City Plan priorities and the committee 

shall not undertake more than two scrutiny 

reviews per annum 

 The ability to establish member-led task and 

finish groups on matters relevant to the 

functions of the committee 

None 

 

3.8 Two of the functions defined in the table are no longer current: 

 
 Oversight of asset reviews (i.e. One Town Review) 
 Approval and oversight of projects under the Small Development Fund 

 
3.9 Oversight of assets is still part of the function of the Committee, where those assets 

generate income. Existing commercial assets and investment properties fall within 
the remit of Policy & Resources through the Asset Management Strategy and Asset 
Management Plan but income levels are reviewed by the Income Generation Sub-

Committee and fees and charges for rent of council property are set by it. There is 
no extant One Town Review programme, however. 

 
3.10 The Small Development Fund has been closed as all projects have been completed or 

were not taken forward and the funding subsumed within the City Plan. 

 
3.11 While the development of Income Generation Proposals remains a key component of 

the Committee’s work, it is important to make the distinction between activities 
funded from revenue and activities funded from capital. HM Treasury guidance on 
the use of PWLB loans only refers to spending on capital items. Therefore, income 

generation from service delivery, such as Trade & Garden Waste, Bereavement 
services and car parking remain within the Committee’s Terms of Reference.   

 
3.12 For capital items, the remit of the Committee needs to shift to focus on ensuring that 

any capital schemes which have an investment element will generate sufficient 

income, as appropriate, to recover the costs of any revenue implications arising. This 
would include, for example rental income streams from housing or other property 

purchases. It is also necessary to apply scrutiny to the acquisition process to ensure 
that all legal and financial due diligence is undertaken in advance of procurement 
and to ensure that future income streams are robust. This is part of the Sub-

Committee’s role which is set out in detail in the Commercial Strategy.  
 

3.13 To emphasise that all capital projects are for the purposes of development rather 
than for income generation, it is proposed that the remit of the Committee is 
changed to focus on ‘Income Management’ as an activity, rather than purely ‘Income 

Generation’. This allows for income generation as an activity to be continued under 
the direction and oversight of the Committee but as part of a policy intention to 

ensure that the Council’s finances remain robust while day-to-day financing remains 
dependant on locally-generated sources of income. Changing the name of the 

Committee to Income Management Sub-Committee will clarify this purpose to 
external parties. 

 

4. Preferred Option  
 

4.1 That the Sub-Committee adopts a revised set of delegated functions as follows: 

Page 8



Committee Functions Delegation of 

Functions 

Income 

Generation 

Sub-

Committee 

To determine all matters falling within the remit of 

the Committee which are within the Council’s Policy 

Framework and Budget other than those reserved by 

this Constitution to the Council 

Delegation to officers set 

out at Part 18. 

 The following functions: 

 Oversight of asset reviews and commercial 

property 

 Development of income generation proposals 

from revenue activities 

 Scrutiny of capital proposals to ensure that 

potential income streams are robustly assessed  

 Feasibility work for income generation  

 Reviewing Fees and Charges 

Delegation to officers set 

out at Part 18. 

  An externally focussed scrutiny function on 

matters relevant to the functions of the 

committee, provided that the areas of scrutiny 

shall be City Plan priorities and the committee 

shall not undertake more than two scrutiny 

reviews per annum 

 The ability to establish member-led task and 

finish groups on matters relevant to the 

functions of the committee 

None 

 

5. Alternative Options Considered 
 

5.1 To retain the existing title and remit of the Sub-Committee. The title ‘Income 

Generation Sub-Committee’ may give the impression to third parties, including HM 
Treasury and funding bodies, that the purpose of an initiative, particularly where this 

involves the acquisition of assets, scrutinised and recommended by the Committee is 
primarily for the purposes of Income Generation. As this will not be the case, the 
recommendation is to clarify the title and remit accordingly. 

6. Implications 
 

6.1 Financial and Budgetary Implications 
There are no direct financial implications arising from the report. 
 

6.2 Legal and Governance Implications 
Treasury Guidance on the use of PWLB loans Changes to the Prudential Code on 

Capital Finance restrict the actions that the Council can take to generate income 
from investment. The Income Generation Strategy has been developed to ensure 
that the Council complies with the revised guidance. A formal Capital Strategy and 

Investment Strategy, which are complementary to the Commercial and Income 
Generation Strategies, were published as part of the budget setting process for 

2019/20 which reflected this guidance and are updated annually. 
 

6.3 Risk Implications 

Overall risks relating to the Council’s finances are reviewed regularly as part of the 
Corporate Risk Register and reported to the Policy and Resources Committee through 

the iterations of the MTFP.  

Page 9



Income levels are reported quarterly to the Sub-Committee and any risks to the 
Council’s finances arising from changes in income levels will be considered at the 

quarterly review meetings. 
 
There is a risk that the Council will be prevented from accessing PWLB finance if it is 

perceived that its activities are for the purposes of generating income rather than for 
development. The change in title and remit of the Sub-Committee are designed to 

mitigate this risk.  
 

6.4 Corporate/Policy Implications 

Management of income forms an important element in the work to implement the 
City Plan, Masterplan, Town Investment Plan and a wide range of strategies 

introduced to support the delivery of the Council’s objectives within the context of its 
corporate values. 

 
6.5 Equality Implications 

None arising directly from this report. 

 
6.6 Human Resources Implications 

None arising directly from this report. 
 

6.7 Health and Safety Implications 

None arising directly from this report 
 

6.8 Economic, Social and environmental Implications 
The Council can use its powers to engage directly in shaping the City and supporting 
initiatives which contribute to the health and wellbeing of Worcester’s residents, 

businesses and visitors. These powers can be used both to engage in activities which 
in themselves generate income, such as transfer of funds to third parties to support 

service delivery, and to use income generated by services to support other activities 
and capital developments.  
 

 
 

Ward(s):   All 
Contact Officer: Shane Flynn – Tel: 01905 722536 

Email shane.flynn@worcester.gov.uk 

Background Papers: None  
 

Page 10



 

 
 

Report to: Income Generation Sub-Committee, 27th July 2022 
 

Report of: Corporate Director, Finance & Resources 
 

 
Subject: QUARTER 1 PERFORMANCE REPORT FOR 2022/23 

 
1. Recommendation 
 

1.1 That the Income Generation Sub-Committee notes the Council’s quarter 1 
performance for 2022/23. 

 
2. Performance Reporting Framework 

 
2.1 A suite of Performance Scorecards have been developed providing a one page overview 

of priority projects, activities and Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) under the 

functions of each committee. 
 

2.2 The Scorecards are supported by a more detailed appendix providing a brief narrative 
update for projects and activities and a visual representation of PIs in the form of run 
graphs or charts as applicable. This provides context in terms of progression, trends 

and seasonal variations to support reporting using RAG assessments (Red, Amber or 
Green). 

 
2.3 The Scorecard has been refreshed for 2022/23 with projects completed in the last 

financial year replaced with new projects as previously agreed by this committee. 

 
2.4 The quarter 1 performance report for the Income Generation Sub-Committee is 

attached as Appendix 1.   
 

 

 
Ward(s):   All 

Contact Officer:   Jo Payne, Corporate Policy and Strategy Officer,  
   01905 722407,  
   Email: Joanna.payne@worcester.gov.uk  

Background Papers: None 

Page 11 Agenda Item 6

mailto:Joanna.payne@worcester.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 6
A

ppendix 1



2 
 

Income Generation Committee 

Performance Report 
 
 

Income Generation Projects and Actions 2022/23 
 
 

Action Status 

 Cancelled 

 Overdue; Neglected 

 Unassigned; Check Progress 

 Not Started; In Progress; Assigned 

 Completed 
 

  

 

Commercial Strategy delivery 

Acquisition of properties under the FHSF, Towns Fund and 

Arches projects is continuing and opportunities are also now 
being considered as the Levelling Up Bid is developed. The 

latter includes the development of Pitchcroft Grandstand 
which will generate additional income for both landlord and 
tenant under a surplus-sharing arrangement. The proposed 

development of Nunnery Wood Sport Centre should also 
improve the operating position of Freedom Leisure which 

will help to secure future income from the Leisure Services 
contract. 
 

Shared Prosperity Fund will also be a new source of income 
for the next three years of £2,945,472, of which 90% is 

revenue funding. £357,460 is due in 2022/23 and is 
unbudgeted income. Some of the funding is committed to 
third parties as replacement ERDF grants but a proportion 

can be used to meet existing costs, thereby further reducing 
the budget gap. Detailed proposals will be reported to the 

PED Committee in July. 
 
A decision relating to the Arches-Worcester contract is to be 

taken at P&R Committee on 26 July. This has the potential 
to generate income through the letting of two arches that 

would be revealed by demolition work while sustaining 
income from other lettings. These could be increased as a 

result of the uplift of the area. 
 
A proposal relating to affordable housing acquisitions is 

under consideration. Further details will be provided in due 
course if the proposal develops. 

 
The Commercial Strategy was renewed in 2021/22 but 

Sponsor Shane Flynn 

Due Date 31-Mar-2023 

Original Due 
Date 

31-Mar-2022 

Current Status  

Expected 
Outcome  

 

Appendix 1 

Page 14



3 
 

needs to be further developed away from income generation 
as an activity for development of assets which can generate 

income to cover costs and also to meet overheads. This is 
part of a proposal for recasting the focus of the committee 

on Income Management, of which Income Generation forms 
a part. 
 

Income Strategy Delivery 

While delivery against the Income Strategy continues to be 
affected by the Covid disruption and wider economic impact, 

such as reduction in car parking income, the budgets for 
income have been reset to the full expected levels. Car park 

income remains an area of risk as does income from the 
leisure services contract, although the management fee for 
2021/22 was largely recovered in full. 

 
There is an income risk against the Angel Place market due 

to ongoing disruption caused by a partial building collapse, 
although income for June showed an improvement over 
previous months. 

 
There are projected losses for Perdiswell Leisure Centre 

during the period of tile replacement. The overall level of 
income to be received from the contract in 2022/23 is under 
discussion but is likely to be less than the approved budget.    

 
Business rates income is becoming the focus of wider 

discussion as the High Street continues to face macro-
economic pressures. It has been confirmed that the 

business rates reset will not take place this year and the 
next revaluation is due in April 2024. The Council is likely, 
therefore, to be able to rely on business rates growth until 

that point. An upside of the economic situation is that 
interest on balances has increased.  

 
The strategy itself was revised in 2021 and so the target 
date for this project has been reset to 1 April 2024. 

Progress against current plans will be reported through 
these quarterly updates.  

Sponsor Shane Flynn 

Due Date 01-Apr-2024 

Original Due 

Date 

31-Mar-2021 

Current Status  

Expected 
Outcome  

 

 

Page 15



4 
 

 

Sports facilities 

The Worcester Hockey Joint Venture partners have 
submitted a request for the ‘practical completion’ stage to 
be concluded so that the loan can be made. This scheme 

should generate income from this financial year. 
 

As agreed at the last meeting, the Communities Committee 
is taking forward the work on the All-Weather Pitch at 
Perdiswell proposal. A cost-benefit analysis is needed for 

new five-a-side pitches adjacent to the leisure centre to 
assess whether this is a viable option. A specification for 

that work will be published in Q2 of this financial year. The 
target date therefore needs to be reset to 31 March 2023 
for this project. 

Sponsor Shane Flynn 

Due Date 31-Mar-2023 

Original Due 
Date 

31-Mar-2019 

Current Status  

Expected 

Outcome  

 

 

Development of Housing Enabling Strategy 

Ark have concluded the review of Council Led Housing 

Development/ Housing Enabling which was reported back to 
Communities Committee in June 2022 following the All 

Member briefing on 25th May 2022.  There are a number of 
quick wins that Officers intend to progress with medium to 
long term options to be built into a Worcester City Council 

Housing Enabling Strategy that intends to be developed 
subject to Member endorsement.  

Sponsor Lloyd Griffiths 

Due Date 31-May-2022 

Original Due 
Date 

31-May-2022 

Current Status  

Expected 
Outcome   

 
 

Page 16



5 

Income Generation Key Performance Indicators 2022/23 
 

PI Status 

 Alert 

 Warning 

 OK 

 Unknown 

 Data Only 
 

 

Riverside - project related income 

 

RAG  Current Value £2,500 Sponsor Mark Baldwin 

Aim to Maximise Current Target £2,500 

Rental income received from riverside organisations. 

Page 17



6 

 

Guildhall - project related income 

 

RAG  Current Value £17,000 Sponsor Mark Baldwin 

Aim to Maximise Current Target £17,000 

The Q1 income is mainly from bookings taken last year. 
 

Trade Waste collection - project related income 

 

RAG  Current Value £223,000 Sponsor Mark Baldwin 

Aim to Maximise Current Target £233,000 

With the University once again fully operational, income is at record levels and only slightly 

below budget. 

Page 18



7 

 

Garden Waste collection - project related income 

 

RAG  Current Value £199,000 Sponsor Mark Baldwin 

Aim to Maximise Current Target £180,000 

This represents a 9% increase on the same period last year. 
 

Property Investment Fund - project related income 

 

RAG  Current Value £316,000 Sponsor Mark Baldwin 

Aim to Maximise Current Target £315,660 

Gross rental income from the City Council's investment properties. 

Page 19



8 

 

Car Parks - income - key revenue streams 

 

RAG  Current Value £758,000 Sponsor Mark Baldwin 

Aim to Maximise Current Target £817,000 

Income increased during the quarter with the month of June being 96% of budget. The is 
being monitored closely to assess the long-term effect of people working from home and on-

line shopping. 
 

Bereavement - income - key revenue streams 

 

RAG  Current Value £394,000 Sponsor Mark Baldwin 

Aim to Maximise Current Target £431,000 

A small increase over the same period last year, but the competition from other local 

crematoria remains strong. 

Page 20



9 

 

Development Management - income - key revenue streams 

 

RAG  Current Value £150,000 Sponsor Mark Baldwin 

Aim to Maximise Current Target £170,000 

Income is below budget but nevertheless the highest in Q1 for the last 3 years. 
 

Neighbourhood - income - key revenue streams 

 

RAG  Current Value £20,000 Sponsor Mark Baldwin 

Aim to Maximise Current Target £29,000 

Mainly income from County Council for transportation of street sweepings on their behalf. 
 
  

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Minutes

	5 Income Generation and Income Management
	6 Quarter 1 Performance Report For 2022/23
	202223IncomeGenerationQuarterlyPerformanceReport Q1 Final


